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RSM PuertoRlco

POBox10528
SanJuan, PR 00922-0528

r (787)7s1-6164
F (787)759-7479

www.rslpr

ffi

To: The Board of Directors of
Puerto Rico Land Administration

We have audited the accompanying flnancial statements of Puerto Rico Land Administration, a Component Unit of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Puerto Rico Land Administration's basic flnancial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of flnancial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audltors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' iudgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statementrs, whether due to fraud or enor. ln making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the flnancial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufiicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT I TAX I CONSULTING

RsM Puerto Rlco is a member ol the RsM netrcrk and trad€s as RsM. RSM is the tradlng nanE used by the memh€rs of the RSM network. Each member of the RSM netwk is an tndependent
accountiry .nd consultln8 firm whki pradkes in its otvn ritht, the RSM rctmrk ls not ltser a separate l€gal entity tn .nylurisdlctton,



Opinion

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Puerto Rico Land Administration as of June 30,2021, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

Requ ired Su pplementary I nfomation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion
and Analysis on pages 3 through 7, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Total Pension Liability and
Related Ratios, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Total Postemployment Benefit Liability and
Related Ratios and the Notes to the Required Supplementary lnformation, on pages 41 through 43, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses
to our inquiries, the basic linancialstatements, and other knowledge we obtained during ouraudit ofthe basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

San Juan, Puerto Rico ,.') / ,/)october26,2o2z. R54 {/,,_.-r{ Zr"e
Stamp No. E 513027 was affixed to
the original of this report.
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IAANAGEIAENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

This section of the Puerto Rico Land Administration (the Administration) financia[ statements
presents a narrative overview and analysis of the Administration's financial performance and is
designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues and activities and to
identify any siSnificant changes in the financial position of the Administration as of and for the
fiscat year ended June 30,2021. The information presented herewith shoutd be read in conjunction
with the Administration's basic financial statements and accompanying notes.

1. FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

. The Administrations total assets increased by approximatety S3,8 mittion (or 1.62%l
o Deferred outflows of resources increased by approximatety 53.5 mittion (ot 64.97%l
. Cash increased by approximately S4.9 million (or 25.54%)
o Land and properties leased under long-term contracts decreased by approximatety 5233 thousand

(or 1.19%)
. capitat assets decreased by approximatety 5598 thousand (or 18.50%)
. Notes, interest and other receivabtes, net, decreased by approximatety 5231 thousand

(ot 17.81%l
o The Administration's tota[ liabilities increased by approximately 53.1 mitlion (or 3.70fr)
. Total pension liabitity increased by approximately 53.3 mittion (or 8.76%)
. Rental income increased by approximately 5259 thousand (or 2.10%)
. There were no sates of land and properties during the year ended June 30,2021
. operating expenses increased by approximately 5485 thousand (ot 5.7z%l

2. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serye as an introduction to the Administration's basic
financial statements, which are comprised of the financial statements and the notes to the financial
statements. Since the Administration is comprised of a singte proprietary fund, no fund [eve[
financiat statements are shown.

Basic Financial Statements - The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of the Administration's finances, in a manner simitar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Administration's assets, deferred
outflows of reiources, tiabitities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the
two reported as net position. Net position increases when revenues exceed expenses. lncrease to
assets without a corresponding increase to tiabitities resutts in increased net position, which
indicates an improved financial position.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position presents information
showing how an entity's net position changed during the fiscal year. Atl changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event occuB, regardless of timing of retated cash ftows. The last
of the required financial statements is the statement of cash ftows. This statement reports cash
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from openting, investing, and capital
and noncapital financing activities, and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come
from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting
period.

Notes to the Basic Financiat Statements - The notes provide additionat information that is essential
to a futt understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.
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I,IANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 202'
(UNAUDITED)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ADMINISTRATION

Condensed financiat information on assets, deferred outflows of resources, tiabitities deferred
inflows of resources and net position, is presented below (all amounts in thousands):

Description 2021 2020

lncrease
(Decrease) Percentage

w
w
v
\,
v
v

v
v

v
w

AS5ETs:

Cash

Notes, interest, and

other receivabtes, net

other assets

Land and properties leased

under long-term contracts

Land and properties hetd-for-
sate and hetd-for-future use

Capita[ assets

s 24,169 S '.19,252 5 4,917 25.54%

(231) (17.81961

0.00%

(233) (1.19%)

0.00%

(18.50%)

1.62%

1,066
175

19,417

187,333

!l 4

[E 975

3

3,074
1 2

1,297

175

19,650

187,333

7723

5

(698)

3

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OF RESOURCES

235 234 23',|

MD

755

5073

LIABILITIES 909

2,41E

3,772

147 78',1

3,066

311

64.92%

(18.50%)

2.92%

2.38%

3.7M

5E4 24.15%

(698)

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets

Un restricted

s 155,166 S 151,553 S 3,613

The Administration's net position increased by approximately 53.6 mittion, mainly due to the
resutt of operations during fiscal year ended June 30, 2021; which inctudes the adjustment for
pension expense for approximatety 5539 thousand more than prior year and, bad debt expenses
for approximately 5502 thousand less than prior year.

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by approximatety 57.3 mittion, which is
net of an increase of approximatety S4.9 mittion in cash, and a decrease of approximatety 5233
thousand in land and properties mainly related to the depreciation expense of the year for
approximately 5233 thousand. ln addition, there was a decrease in capitat assets of approximatety
5698 thousand, net from the depreciation expense of the year for approximately 5711 thousand
and acquisition of equipment for approximately $13 thousand. Atso, there was an increase in
deferred outflows of resources for approximately 53.5 mittion related to pension and other
postemployment benefits.

The increase in cash is retated to net cash provided by operating activities for approximatety S4.9
mi[[ion.
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IIIANAGEIIENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

The increase in deferred outflows corresponds to the adjustments made related to GASB
Statement No. 73, Accounting oN Financial Reportins lor Per6iorE ond Reloted Assets That Are
Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB
Stotements 67 and 68, plus the payments and accruals of the Pay-as-you-go (Pay-Go) for
approximatety 51.5 mitlion and 52 mittion, respectivety. ln addition, the Administration recorded a
tiabitity due to the commonwealth of Puerto Rico (commonwealth) for approximatety s2.2 mittion
related to the Pay-Go balance.

Condensed financial information on revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position is
presented betow (att amounts in thousands):

lncrease

Description 2021 2O2O (Decrease) Percentage

w
w
v
v
\,
v

s s

v
v

v
v
v
w
w
v
w
v

v
v
v
w
w
vt
v
w

OPERATING REVENUES:

Land and properties sates, net

Rental income

OPERATING EXPENSES

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

CHANGE IN NET POSMON

12,567

12,567

8,962

373 S (373) (100.00%)

12,308 259 2.1M

12,681 11141 (0.90%)

485 5.72%

103

8,1n

7 (96) (93.20%)

s 3,612 5 4,307 5 (695) (16.14%l

The Administration enters into lease agreements on the land and properties it owns with
government and private entities. The agreements vary in prices and terms depending on the
intended public use and benefits to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico residents.

The Administration atso acquires and setts to other government agencies and instrumentalities
or private entities, land and property that have been determined to be used or developed for
public interest.

Operating expenses comprising principatty of administration expenses, are mostly payro[[, pensions
and payment of real property taxes to which certain tand and property are subject.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no sales of land and properties, while during the
year 2020, there were net sales of approximatety 5373 thousand. The Administration's strategy is
focused on long-term ownemhip of the current resources and leased them. During the year ended
June 30, 2021, the Administration remain constant in terms of operations related to the lease of land
and properties.
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fiANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Operating expenses increased by approximatety 5485 thousand (or 5,72%1, mostly caused by the
fotlowing:

. Decrease in perrcnnel services for approximatety 533 thousand (or 0.97%), which is mainty related
to decrease in the adjustment for termination benefits recognized during the year related to Act
No. 211 and to Act No. 70 for approximatety 5108 thousand less than prior year and increase in
OPEB expense by approximatety S42 thousand.

. Pension co6ts of current year arnounted to approximatety 5539 thousand less than prior year.

. There was an increase in professional services and repair and maintenance expense for
approximatety 5446 thousand, mainly retated to repaiB performed during the year on property
and equipment.

. During the year 2021, a net recovery on a[loi/ance for bad debt was recorded for approximately
5113 thousand.

Caoital Assets: The Administration acquires, invests and or devetops existing facitities, vacant
business sites, unimproved land and other real estate for future devetopment by the government
or private sector. Site developed and buitdings along with tand hetd for lease, sale or future use
are segregated from the capital assets being used in the Administration's operations.

v

v
v
v

v
w

w the Administration as of

v
v
v
v
v
w
v

v

v
v

v

The fottowing table summarizes the capital assets of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, (at[ amounts in thousands):

Description 2021 2020
lncrease

(Decrease) Percentage

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Land

Buitding and improvements

Furniture and equipment

Vehictes

Computer software
Less: Accumulated depreciation

and amortization

s 106 5

14,928
1,305

191

103

13,55

106 s
14,928

1 ,292
191

103

12,848

0.00%

0.00%

1.01%

0.00%

0.00%

5.53%

13

11

18.50%

Change in accumulated depreciation is due to of depreciation expense of buitdings and improvements for
approximatety 5675 thousand, and fumiture and equipment for approximatety 536 thousand, for the year
ended June 30,7021, For a detaited activity of capital assets, ptease refer to Note 8 of the basic
financial statements.

3 074 1_____]il2 l______G2!r
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I,IANAGEIAENT,S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

4. COlil illTMENTs\,

a
w
w

Guarantees

The Administration seryes as absolute, unconditional and irrevocable guarantor to the US

Government, represented by the Department of the Navy, for an acquisition of properties made by
the Local Redevelopment Authority for Naval Station Roosevelt Roads. For additional details on this
commitment, please refer to Note 18 of the accompanying basic financial statements.

Claim to Federal l{anasement Administration (FEllA)

During fiscal year 2019, Management re-evatuated the extent of the hurricane-related damages to
the Administration's properties hetd-for-sale and estimated its losses. Accordingly, on December
2019, the Administration presented a claim in respect to hurricane damages to the Federal
Emergency llanagement Administrdtion (FEl,lA). On January 11, 2021, the Administration received
notification of approval of funds for the total amount of approximatety 510.2 mittion. During the
year ended June 30, 2021, the Administration did not have expenditures retated to federal funds.
Refer to Note 18 of the accompanying basic financia[ statements.

Ctaim for Earthquakes

During the fiscal year 2020, the Puerto Rico's governor declared a state of emergency and requested
direct federal assistance and emergency protective measures related to events of earthquakes
occurred during January of the same year. The Administration identified one property with structural
damages; this property is actuatty under a long-term contract with the municipatity of Ponce to
operate the casino. As of June 30, 2021, the Administration is in the process to sign a Memorandum
of UndeBtanding (MOU), in order to FElrlA considers the municipality as a subrecipient and obtain
federat funds to repair damages of the property, refer to the Note 18 for detaits.

5. REQUEST FOR TNFOR ATTON

This financial report is designed to provide those interested with a general oveMew of the
Administration's finances. Questions concerning any of the information pro/ided in this report or requests
for additionat financial information shoutd be addressed to the Puerto Rico land Administration, 171

Carlos Chardon Avenue, Suite 101, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 00918.

v

v
v

v
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v
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v PUERTO RICO LAND AD,YIINISTRATION

(A Component Unit of the Conmonwealth of Puerto Rico)

STATEAIIENT OF NET POSITION

June 30 2021v

v
w
v

a
v
v

w
J
v
v

v

ASSETS

v
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Notes, interest and other receivabtes, net
Other assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Land and properties:

Leased under long-term contracts-

Catano Fuel Storage and Pier Facilities, net

Other properties, net

Hetd-for-sale

Hetd-for-future use

Capital assets, net

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Pension retated

Other postemptoyment benefits related

s

v
v
I
w

t
t
v
v

24,169,061
1,066,188

175,492

25,410,741

2,817,919

16,598,736

19,416,655

169,000,220

18,332,914

706,7 49,789

3,073,807

209,823,596

235,234,337

8,831,643

77,300

8,908,943

143,280

Continues...
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30 2021

w
v
\,

v
v
a
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v
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w

w
v

a
v

v
v
w

t

v

Continued...

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued tiabitities

Due to governmental entities

Compensated absences

Termination benefits

Total pension tiabitity

Other postemptoyment benefits tiability
Unearned rent

NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Guaranty rent deposits

Compensated absences

Termination benefits

TotaI pension liabitity
Other postemptoyment benefits liabitity
Deposits on sates of land and properties hetd-for-sale

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, pension retated

NET POSITION:

lnvestment in capital assets

U n restricted

s 1,925,955

3,513,781

128,427

269,381

2,152,437

73,275

991,351

9,054,607

771 ,462
320,179

1,066,747

41,828,559

965,844

31 ,967 ,777

76,920,568

85,975,175

3,002,201

3,073,807

152,092,097

155 165 904

v

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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ti RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION

(A Component Unit of the Colm,m wealth of Puerto Rico)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES:

Rental income

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Sataries and fringe benefits

Pension expense

Professiona[ services

Utitities

Property taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation and amortization
Other

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING REVENUE, lnterest income

INCREASE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, beginning of year (as restated)

NET POSITION, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

5 12,567,496

w
v

w

3,392,638

2,275,497

850,601

258,710

240,745

402,670

376,124

944,129

220,559

8,961 ,673

3,605,823

6,718

3,612,541

w

v

151 553 363
w
w
v
a

v

155,165,904

v

w
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PUERTO RICO LAND AD,VIINISTRATION

(A Component Unit of the CoIm,moawealth of Rterto Rico)

STATEIIIENT OF CASH FLOW5

For the fiscal year ended June 30,202.1

v
v
v
v
w

v
v

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Rental income
Payment to employees and related payroll costs

Payments for goods, services and taxes, substantiatly real property tax

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FRO iI CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

CapitaI expenditures

CASH FLOWS FRO iI INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

lnterest coltected on cash deposit accounts

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOA'IE TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income
Adiustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities -

Depreciation and amortization of capital assets

Depreciation and amortization of properties under long-term contracts
Recovery on allowance for bad debt expense

Notes, interest, and other receivabtes
(lncrease) decrease in deferred ouflows of resources -

Pension related
Other postemptoyment benefits related

lncrease (decrease) in tiabitities -

Accounts payable and accrued liabitities
Due to governmentat entities
Compensated absences

Termination benefits
Totat pension [iability
Other postemptoyment benefits liabitity
Unearned rent
Deposits on sales of land and properties held-for-sate

lncrease in deferred inflows of resources - pension related

Net cash provided by operating activities

12,830,858
(5,725,7531

181,545

4,923,560

2.,905

6,718

4,917 ,373

19,251,688

24 169

s

1

5 3,605,823

\,
w

v
v
v

v

v 711,109

233,021

(113,709)

344,073

(3,508,388)

1 ,400

w

v

w
v

177 ,680
(382,439)

111,327

1347,1371
3,514,491

22,970
(63,759)

32,998
584 100

923 560

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this financial statement.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Component Unit of the Cfi|/,,,onwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEA'IENTS
Flscal year ended June 30, 2021

v
v
v
v
v
v
v
v
w

w
v
v
v

v
v

v
w

v
v

1) Reporting Entlty:

The Puerto Rico Land Administration (the Administration) is a public corporation and a component unit of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonweatth). The Administration was created by Act No. 13 of tlay 16,
1962, as amended, to promote the welfare of the community through efforts and programs designed for the
efficient utilization of pubtic land in Puerto Rico. Among its programs, the Administration acquires, through
negotiation or expropriation, parcets of [and, on behatf of government entities, for future development or for
reserve. The Administration is atso dedicated to the rental of certain tracts of land through tease contracts for
pubtic and private us€.

The Administration is exempt from the payment of Puerto Rico taxes. on December 30, 2020, Act No. 1 , was
approved, to amend the Articles 4, 7, 11, 14 and 15 of the Act No. 13 of l ay 16, 1962. Pursuant to this Act, the
Administration is exempt from payments related to property taxes.

2) Basis of Presentation and Summary of Signlficant Accounting Policies:

The accounting and reporting poticies of the Administration conform to accounting principtes generally accepted in
the United States of America (US GAAP), for governments as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). Following is a description of the most significant accounting policies:

- Financia[ statements of proprietary
funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred, regardless of the timing of retated
cash ftows. Proprietary funds present three basic financial statements, which include a statement of net position,
a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position, and a statement of cash flows. The
statement of net position presents the Administration's assets and [iabilities, with the difference between assets
ptus deferred outflows of resources less tiabitities ptus deferred inftows of resources, reported as net po6ition. Net
position may be reported in three categories:

. Net investment in caDital assets - Consists of capital assets, net ofaccumutated depreciation and amortization
and reduced by the outstanding balances of related debt when such debt is attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those capital assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inftows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related
debt shoutd also be included in this component of net position,

.@.consistsofrestrictedassetsreducedbyretatedtiabitities.Restricted
net assets resutt when constraints are placed on the use of net assets, either externaUy imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributions, and the tike, or imposed by taw through constitutionat provisions or enabting
legistation.

.@-lsthenetamountof(i)assetsP[usdeferredoutflowsofresources,
tess (ii) tiabitities, and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet the definition of the two preceding
categories. Unrestricted component of net position often is assigned in order to indicate that management
does not consider them to be available for general operations. Unrestricted component of net position often
has constraints on the use that are imposed by management, but such constraints may be removed or
modified.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avai[ab[e for use, it is the Administration's poticy to use
restrictd resources first and the unrestricted resources when they are needed.

w
v

v.
v
w

v
w
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Co{/nponent Unit of the Cqnmonweolth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATETAENTS
Flscal year ended June 30, 2021

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position distinguishes operating revenues and
expenses from non-operating items. The operating revenues of the Administration are those generated from the
activities retated to the sates and rental of land and properties. Operating expenses include payro]t and related-
payrou benefits, depreciation and amortization, property taxes, insurance, repair and maintenance and other.
Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The statement of cash ftows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net change in cash resulting from
operating, investing, and capitaI and non-capital financing activities, and provides answers to such questions as
where cash came from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash batance during the reporting
period.

Use of estimates - The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principtes
generalty accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results coutd differ from those estimates. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
inctude the aUowance for uncoltectibte receivabtes, useful life of capital assets, impairment on properties held-
for-sale and hetd-for-future-use, total pension tiabitity, and other postemptoyment benefits tiabitity.

Notes. interest and other receivabtes - Notes, interest and other receivables are stated net of estimated
atlowance for uncoltectible accounts. The atlowance for uncollectibte amounts is maintained on atl types of
receivables that historicalty experience uncotlectible amounts. Allowances are based on coltection experience and
management's evaluation of the current status of existing receivables.

Land and DroDerties - l-and and properties are recorded at cost, plus altocable interest, costs of appraisals, retated
acquisition studies and improvements, and other capitatizable costs or market value, whichever is lower. Donated
land properties are stated at fair market value at date of donation.

llanagement of the Administration is of the opinion that the cost to appraise a[[ [and and property would represent
a significant and unwarranted expense. Appraisats of certain properties were made during the fiscal year2021, as
well as current market value information of certain land and properties obtained from sates transactions and other
sources were reviewed as part of the impairment evaluation. During the year ended June 30, 2021, no impairment
was recognized by management.

CaDital assets - Capitat assets that are purchased or constructed are recorded at historical cost. Donated assets
are recorded at estimated market value at the time of donation. The Administration defines capital assets as
assets with an individual cost of more than 5500 and a useful life of five (5) years or more. The cost of normal
maintenance and repaiB that do not add to the value of the asset or materiauy extend asset lives are not
capitatized.

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-tine method over the estimated useful lives ofthe respective
capital assets, as fo[[ows:

Description
Usefut tife
(ln years)

10-30
5-15

5

5

Buitding and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Vehictes
Computer software
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Conponent Unit of the Cdnmonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIIIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

At the time capital assets are sotd or otherwise disposed, the cost and related accumutated depreciation is
removed from books and the resutting gain or loss, if any, is credited or charged to operations.

Capitat assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with the GASB Statement
No. 42, Accounting ond Financial Reporting for lmpoirment of Capitdl Assets ond for lnsurance Recoveries.

Events or changes in circumstances that may be indicative of impairment inctude evidence of physical damage,
enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in environmental factoB, technological changes or
evidence of obsotescence, changes in the manner or duration of use of a capital asset, and construction stoppage.
A capital asset generally shoutd be considered impaired if both (a) the decline in service utility of the capital asset
is [arge in magnitude and (b) the event or change in circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital
asset. The amount of the impairment of these assets is determined by comparing the carrying vatue with the fair
vatue of the asset. Fair value is determined bas€d on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending on the
nature of the assets. fulanagement understands that there are no instances of impairment of capita[ assets during
the year ended June 30, 2021.

ComDensated absences - Based on Act No. 26 of 2017, employees are granted for the accumulation of 1.25 days
per month (15 days annually) of vacation time. vacation time accumulated is futly vested by the employees from
the first day of work up to a maximum of 60 days. Emptoyees generalty accumutate sick teave at a rate of 1 .5 days
per month up to an annual maximum of 18 days and an accumulated maximum of 90 days. ln the event of an
employee resignation, the employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation days up to the maximum altowed (60

days).

Termination benefits - The Administration accounts for termination benefits in accordance with the provisions of
GASB No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benetits, which indicates that employers shou[d recognize a tiabitity and
expense for voluntary termination benefits when the offer is accepted, and the amount can be estimated. A
tiabitity and expense for involuntary termination benefits should be recognized when a ptan of termination has
been approved by those with the authority to commit the Sovernment to the plan, the ptan has been
communicated to the employees, and the amount can be estimated.

Land and properties sates - Land and properties sates are recognized when titte to the land and property is
conveyed to the buyer. When portions of land parcels are sold, the cost of land is determined by computing an
average area unit cost at the date of sale, which is then apptied to the total area sold. Sate of air and surface
rights to land is recognized as sale of land under the futt accrual method of accounting.

Rental income - Consists principauy of the leasing of the Cataflo Fue[ Storage Facilities and land parcels subject to
lease contracts at varying terms. At[ leases have been classified as operating leases. Renta[ income is presented as
operating revenues in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position.

Risk manacement - The Administration is responsibte for assuring that the Administration's property is properly
insured. Annually, the Administration evatuates the information regarding a[[ property owned and the respective
reptacement vatues, and purchases property and casualty insurance policies. lnsurance coverage for fiscal
yeat ?021 remained similar to thos€ of prior yeaB. For the last three years, insurance settlements have not
exceeded the amount of coverage.

Non-exchanqe transactions - GASB Statement No. 33, Accountiry and Financiol Reprting for Non-Exchange
Tronsoctions, establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for non-exchange tGnsactions invotving
financial or capital resources (for example, most taxes, grants, and private donations]. ln non-exchange
transactions, a government gives (or receives) vatue without directly receiving (or giving) equat value in return.
This is different from an exchange transaction, in which each party receives and gives up essentialty equal vatues,

Page 14



PUERTO RICO LAND ADIAINISTRATION
(A Conponent Unit of the Commonwealth of Puefto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATE'TIENTS
Flscal year ended June 30, 2021

Under the provisions of this statement, the provider and the recipient should recognize the non-exchange
transaction as an expense and revenue, respectivety, when att etigibitity requirements are satisfied.

Deferred Outflows/lnftows of Resources - ln addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources which represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and witl not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then. The Administration recorded as
deferred outflows of resources certain pension and other postemployment benefits retated items.

Of the pension related items, changes in proportional share of contributions and differences between expected
and actual experience, are capitalized and recognized over a period equal to the expected remaining working
lifetime of active and inactive participants. Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments is deferred and recognized over a five-year period. Pension contributions made subsequent to
the measurement date witl be recognized as a reduction of the net pension tiability after the next measurement
date. Of the other postemployment benefits related items only other postemptoyment benefits payments made
subsequent to the measurement date are presented as a deferred outflow item, which witl be recognized as a
reduction of the tota[ other postemptoyment benefits (OPEB) tiabitity after the next measurement date.

ln addition to liabitities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources,
which represents an acquisition of net position that appties to a future period and wi[ not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) untit that time. The Administration has deferred inflows of resources retated to
pensions. The pension related items include changes in proportional share of contributions, differences between
expected and actual experience, and changes in actuarial assumptions; these items are deferred and recognized
over a period equat to the expected remaining working lifetime of active and inactive participants. Net
differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments are deferred and recognized over
a five-year p€riod.

Accountins for Dension costs - The Administration accounts for pension costs under the provisions of
GASB Statement N o.73, Accounting ond Finoncial Reporting for Pensions ond Reloted Assets That Are Not Within
the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Stotements No. 67
ond No. 68, Under the guidance of GASB No. 73, the Commonweatth and its component units (inctuding the
Administration) are considered to be one employer and are ctassified for financial reporting purpose as a single-
employer defined benefit plan. GASB Statement No. 71 requires that a government recognize a deferred outftow
of resources for its pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date.

Accountinq for OPEB - The Administration accounts for OPEB costs under the provisions of the GASB Statement
No. 75, Accounting ond Financial Reprting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. quatified retired
employees of the Administration participate in the Other Postemployment Plan of the Commonweatth for Retired
Participants of the Emptoyee's Retirement System (the OPEB Ptan). The OPEB Plan is an unfunded, multi- employer
defined benefit other postemployment healthcare benefit ptan. The OPEB P[an is administered on a pay-as-]ou-go
basis. Therefore, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, the Administration reports its proportionate share of
OPEB tiabitity and the related OPEB amounts.

Accountinq pronouncements issued but not vet effective - The fottowing new accounting standards have been
issued but are not yet effective:

GASB Statement No. 87. Leoses. The obiective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of
financia[ statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
Statement increases the usefutness of governments' financiat statements by requiring recognition of certain
lease assets and liabitities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.

o
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADAAINISTRATION
(A Component Unit of the Cdnm@wealth of Puefto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEI,IENTS
Flscal year ended June 30, 2021

:l

It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundationa[ principle that teases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a
tease tiabitity and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease
receivabte and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of
information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15,2020.

GASB Statement No, 89 , Accountine for lnterest Cost lncurred Before the End of a Construction Period. This
Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codificotion of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidonce Contoined in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB ond AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this
Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be
recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financia[ statements prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period witt not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type
activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in the financial statements prepared using the
current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmentat fund accounting principtes.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020.
Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 91. Conduit Debt Obliqotions. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a
single method of reporting conduit debt obtigations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated
with (i) commitments extended by issuers, (ii) arrangements associated with conduit debt obtigations, and (iii)
retated note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by ctarifying the existing definition of a
conduit debt obtigation; estabtishing that a conduit debt obtigation is not a tiabitity of the issuer; establishing
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and votuntary commitments
extended by issuers and arrangements associated Mth conduit debt obtigations; and improving required note
disclosures,

This Statement atso addresses arrangements - often characterized as leases - that are associated with conduit
debt obtigations. ln those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the proceeds of a
conduit debt obtigation and used by third-party obtigors in the course of their activities. Payments from third.
party obtigors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. During those arrangements,
issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the obligors at the end of the
arrangements.

This Statement requires issueB to disclose generat information about theirconduit debt obligations, organized
by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principat amount of the issuers' conduit debt
obtigations and a description of each type of commitment. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2020, Earlier application is encouraged.

n
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PUERTO RICO LAND AD,YTINISTRATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonweolth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

:l

GASB Statement No. 92. Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in
accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and apptication of certain GASB Statements.
This Statement addresses a variety of topics and inctudes specific provisions about the fotlowing: the effective
date of Stotement No. 87, Leoses, ond lmplementotion Guide No. 2019-3, Leoses, for interim financial
reports; reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a
component unit defined benefit pension ptan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) ptan;
the appticabitity of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reprting for Pensions ond Related Assets
Thot Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Anendments to Certoin Provisions of GASB

Statements No. 67 and 68, as omended, and No.74, Findncial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plons, as amended, to reporting assets accumutated for postemployment benefits; the
appticabitity of certain requirements of Statement No, U, Fiduciary Activities, to postemptoyment benefit
arrangements; measurement of [iabitities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obtigations (ARos) in
a government acquisition; reporting by pubtic entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverabte from
reinsurers or excess insurers; reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or tiabitities in
authoritative literature; and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020. Eartier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of,nterbonk Offered Rates /L,8OR). The objective of this Statement is
to address accounting and financiat reporting imptications that result from the replacement of a LIBOR, most
notably the London lnterbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of gtobal reference rate reform, LIBOR is
expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021 , prompting governments to amend or reptace
financial instruments for the purpose of reptacing LIBOR Mth other reference rates, by either changing the
reference rate or adding or changing fattback provisions retated to the reference rate.

This statement achieves its objective by:

Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination
provisions when a LIBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative instrument's
variabte payment.

Ctarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace the
reference rate.

Ctarifying that the uncertainty retated to the continued availabitity of LIBOR's does not, by itself, affect
the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable.

Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the
effectiveness of an interest rate swap.

ldentifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as appropriate
benchmark intere6t rates for the quatitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap.

Ctarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in GASB Statement No. 53, as amended.

Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in GASB Statement No. 87, as amended, for
certain lease contracts that are amended solely to replace a LIBOR as the rate upon which variabte
payments depend.

o

o

o

o

o

o

o
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Component Unit of the Cdnmonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

The removaI of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after
December 31, 2021 . Att other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15,2020. Eartier apptication is encouraged. The exceptions to the existing provisions for hedge
accounting termination and lease modifications in this Statement wi[[ reduce the cost of the accounting and
financial reporting ramifications of reptacing LIBOR's with other reference rates. The reliability and retevance
of reported information wiI be maintained by requiring that agreements that effectivety maintain an existing
hedging arrangement continue to be accounted for in the same manner as before the replacement of a
reference rate. As a result, this Statement wi[[ preserve the consistency and comparability of reporting
hedging derivative instruments and leases after governments amend or reptace agreements to replace a
LIBOR.

Statement No The primary obiective ofthis Statement
is to improve financiaI reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-pubtic partnership
arrangements (PPPS). A PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an
operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide pubtic seMces by conveying control of the
right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the undertying PPP

asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.

Some PPPS meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), (1) the operator cottects and is
compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve
which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the rrvices,
and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitted to significant
residual interest in the service utitity of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. This
Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for avaitability payment arrangements
(APAS). An APA is an arrangement in which a government compensates an operator for services that may
inctude designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a
period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and att
reporting periods thereafter. Eartier apptication is encouraged.

GAsBslatement No. 95. Postponement of the effective dates of Certoin Authoritotive Guidonce. The primary
objective of this Statement is to provide temporary retief to governments and other stakehotders in light of
the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomptished by postponing the effective dates of certain
provisions in Statements and lmplementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduted to become
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. The new effective dates for the appticabte
statements to the Administration were included in each statement included above.

o

.,]

:l This Statement provides
guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technotogy
arrangements (SBlTAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2)
establishes that a SBITA resutts in a right-to-use subscription asset-an intangible asset-and a corresponding
subscription tiabitity; (3) provides the capitatization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments,
including implementation co6ts of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a 5B|TA. To the extent
relevant, the standards for SBITAS are based on the standards estabtished in Statement No. 87, Leoses, as
amended. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal )rears beginning after June 15, 2022, and
att reporting periods thereafter. Eartier application is encouraged.
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(A Cfitponent Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEITIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021
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84, ond a Supersession of GASB Statement No, 32, The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1 ) increase
consistency and comparabitity related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which
a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties
that a governing board typicatty would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain
defined contribution pension ptans, defined contribution other than postemployment benefit (OPEB) ptans,
and emptoyee benefit ptans other than pension ptans or OPEB plans (other emptoyee benefit ptans) as
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financia[ statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency,
and comparabitity of the accounting and financial reporting for lnternal Revenue Code (lRC) Section 457
deferred compensation plans (Section 457 ptans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits
provided through those plans,

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a
governing board typicatty performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting maiority of a governing board in determining whether they are financiatty
accountable for defined contribution pension ptans, defined contribution oPEB plans, or other employee
benefit ptans and (2) timit the appticabitity of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement 84 to
defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet
the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectivety, are effective
immediately.

The requirements of this Statement that are retated to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457
plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining whether a
primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements of this
Statement that provide that for a[ other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated the same
as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties
that a governing board typica[y would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted by requirement as specified
within this Statement.

The Board considered the effective dates for the requirements of this Statement in tight of the COVID-l9
pandemic and in concert with Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Elfective Dates of Certain
Author i totive G ui dance.

GASB Statement 98, The Annwl ComDrehensive Finonciol ReDort. This Statement amends National Council on
Governmental Accounting Statement 1, Governmentol Accounting and Finoncial Reporting Principles,
Summary Statement of Principles No. 12, paragraphs 4 , 12, 128,135, 138, 139, 143, 155, 157,173, and175,
and footnote 22; Statement No. 6, Accounting ond Financial Reporting for Special Assessments, paragraph 13;
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, paragraph 50; Statement No. 30, Risk Financing Omnibus,
paragraph 7; Statement No. 34, fusic Finonciol Stotements-and llanagement's Discussion and Anolysis-for
State and Locol Governments, footnote 7; NCGA lnterpretation 10, State and Local Government Budgetary
Reporting, paragraph 14; lmplementation Guide No. 2015-1, questions 2.4.1,3.35.2,4.28.11,4.43.2.,7.5.1,
7.5.2,7.4.2, 7.69.1,7.91.3, 9.2.1, 9.2.2,9.14.2, and 9.33.3; and lmptementation cuide No. 2016-1,
lmplementation Guidance Update-2ol6, Question 5.10. Establishes the term annual comprehensive financial
report and its acronym ACFR. That new term and acronym reptace instances ofcomprehensive annual financial
report and its acronym in generaUy accepted accounting principles for state and tocal governments. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2021. Eartier
application is encouraged.
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o GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparabitity in
accounting and financiaI reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1 )
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements
and (2) accounting and financiat reporting for financial guarantees. The practice issues addressed by this
Statement are as fo[[ows:

Ctassification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No, 53, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Derivative lnstruments, that do not meet the definition of either an
investment derivative instrument or a hedging derivative instrument.

Ctarification of provisions in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended, related to the determination of the
lease term, classification of a lease as short-term [ease, recognition and measurement of a tease
tiabitity and a tease asset, and identification of tease incentives.

Ctarification of provisions in Statement No.94, Pubtic-Private and Pubtic-Pubtic Partnerships and
Avaitabitity Payment Arrangements, related to (a) the determination of the pubtic-private and public-
public partneBhip (PPP) term and (b) recognition and measurement of instatlment payments and the
transfer of the undertying PPP asset.

Ctarification of provisions in Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based lnformation Technotogy
Arrangements, related to the subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITA) term,
ctassification of a SBITA as a short-term SBITA, and recognition and measurement of a subscription
tiabitity.

o

o

o

o

v
v
v

v
v

v
v
v

o

o

o

o

Extension of the period during which the London lnterbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is considered an
appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest
rate swap that hedges the interest rate risk of taxabte debt.

Accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supptemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(sNAP).

Disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions.

Pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by the ptedging government.

Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and llanagement's Discussion
and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, as amended, retated to the focus of the government-
wide financiaI statements.

Terminology updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnftows of Resources, and Net Position.

o

o Terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADAAINISTRATION
(A Compo/,ent Unit of the Comm@wealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIAENTS
Fiscal ended June 3 zo21

The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows:

The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions, disclosures of
nonmonetary transactions, ptedges of future revenues by ptedging governments, clarification of certain
provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminotogy updates related to Statement 53 and Statement 63
are effective upon issuance. The requirements related to leases, PPP5, and SBITAS are effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2022, and att reporting periods thereafter.
The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments
within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and att reporting
periods thereafter.

ond The primary objective of this Statement
is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to
provide more understandab[e, reliabte, retevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions
or assessing accountabitity. This Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles,
changes in accounting estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the
transactions or other events that constitute those changes. As part of those descriptions, for (1) certain
changes in accounting principtes and (2) certain changes in accounting estimates that result from a change in
measurement methodotogy, a new principle or methodology shoutd be justified on the basis that it is
preferable to the principte or methodology used before the change.

The requirements of this Statement for changes in accounting principles apply to the imptementation of a new
pronouncement in absence of specific transition provisions in the new pronouncement. Furthermore, this
Statement addresses how information that is affected by a change in accounting principte or error correction
shoutd be presented in required supplementary information (RSl) and supptementary information (Sl). The
requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal yeaB
beginning after June 15, 2023, and atl reporting periods thereafter. Eartier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 101. Compensated Absences. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and
financial reporting for (a) compensated absences and (b) associated salary-re]ated payments, inctuding certain
defined contribution pensions and defined contribution other postemployment benefits (OPEB). The
requirements of this Statement appty to the financial statements of atl state and tocal governments. The
Statement does not apply to benefits that are within the scope of Statement No. 47, Accounting for
Termination Benefits, as amended.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Component Unit of the Cffi|/,|,onweolth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEAIIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

This statement supersedes Statement No. '16, Accounting for Compensated Absences; lmplementation Guide
No. 2015-1, Questions 5.255.1,2.16.1, and 2.16.2; lmptementation Guide No. 2016-1, lmplementation
Guidance Update- 2016, question 5.37; lmplementation Guide No. 2017-2, Financiat Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, Questions 4.20 and 4.21 ; and lmplementation Guide
No. 2017-3, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions (and
Certain lssues Related to OPEB Ptan Reporting), Questions 4.18, 4.19, and 4.496. This Statement amends NCGA

Statement 1, Governmentat Accounting and Financial Reporting Principtes, paragraphs 42,43, and 158;
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and llanagements Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local
Governments, paragraph 119; Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, paragraphs
123, 126-178, 132, and 133; Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Retated
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB

Statements 67 and 68, paragraphs 102, 105-107, 111, and 112i Statement No. 74, Financiat Reporting for
Postemptoyment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, paragraphs 10 and 63 and footnote 6; Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemptoyment Benefits Other Than Pensions, paragraphs 8, 230,
233-235, 739, 240, and 246 and footnote 5; GASB lnterpretation No. 6, Recognition and i{easurement of
Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, paragraph 14;
lmplementation Guide 2015-1, Question 7.22.4; lmptementation Guide 2017-2, question 4.22; and
lmptementation Guide 2017-3, Question 4.20. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15,2023, and a[[ reporting periods thereafter. Eartier apptication is encouraged.

Management is evaluating the impact that these Statements wiI have on the Administration's basic financiaI
statements.

3) Correction of prlor year's net position:

During the year ended June 30, 2021 , the Administration corrected the beginning balance of net position and totat
tiabitities for 5282,431, in order to correct balance in unearned rent from prior years. Accordingly, the figures as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented as restated in the accompanying basic financial
statements. The effect of the restatement is as fo[[ows:

v
v
v

v
v

v
w
v

w
v

w

v
v

v

v

TotaI
Liabitities

Net
PositionDescriDtion

5 83,191,474 5 151,270,932
(282,4311 282,431

82 909 151 553 363

4) Depo6its Placed with Bank:

The Administration is authorized to deposit funds in the custody of financial institutions approved by the
Commonweatth. Commonweatth's regutations require domestic commercial banks to maintain cotlateral securities
ptedged for the security of pubtic deposits at an amount in excess of federal insurance coverage.

Deposits, either insured or coltateralized, are not considered to be subiect to custodial credit risk. Custodial
credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to the transaction, the Administration may
not be able to recover the vatue of the investment or cotlateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. As of June 30, 2021 , cash in commercial banks have a carrying amount of approximatety 524,200,000 and a
depository bank balance of approximatety 524,500,000.

As previously reported
Correction of unearned rent
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(A Cdnponent Unit of the Cdnmonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEAAENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

5) Claim receivable from Public Entlty Trust:

On August 10, 2018, the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) commenced an action to
restructure certain of its indebtedness pursuant to a Quatifying llodification (the Quatifying Modification) under
Titte Vl of PROMESA. The United States District Court for the District of Puerto Rico approved GDB'S proposed
restructuring on November 6, 2018, and the quatifying lttodification went effective on Novembet 29,2018.

Pursuant to Act 109-2017 , atso known as the Government Development funk for Puerto Rico Debt Restructuring
Act (the GDB Restructuring Act) and the terms of the Quatifying Modification, ctaims on account of deposits
hetd by the Commonwealth and other public entities, including the Administration, were exchanged for beneficial
units in the "Pubtic Entity Trust" created pursuant to the GDB Restructuring Act. Specificatty, under the provisions
of the GDB Restructuring Act, on the closing date of the Quatifying,\ odification (i.e., November 29, 2018) lthe
Ctosing Date), the balance of [iabitities owed between the Commonwealth and its agents, instrumentalities and
affiliates, including the Administration (each a Non-Municipal Government Entity) and GDB was determined by
apptying the outstanding balance of any deposits hetd at GDB in a Non-i,lunicipat Government Entity's name
against the outstanding balance of any loan of such Non-Municipa] Government Entity owed to GDB or of any bond
or note of such Non-Municipal Government Entity hetd by GDB as of such date.

Those Non-Municipa[ Government Entities having net ctaims against GDB, after giving effect to the foregoing
adjustment, which inctuded the Administration, received their pro rata share of interests on the Pubtic Entity
Trust (or PET), which was deemed to be in full satisfaction of any and atl claims such Non-i{unicipal Government
Entity may have had against GDB. As a result of the execution of the Qualifying Modification the Administration
received beneficial units of the PET amounting to 536,553,000 in exchange for the deposits hetd at GDB.
The assets of the PET (the PET Assets) consist of, among other items, a ctaim in the amount ofapproximatety 5578
million against the Commonwea[th, which is the subject of a proof of ctaim filed in the Commonweatth's Titte lll
case (the PET Ctaim).

The Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors appointed in the Commonwealth Titte lll Case has objected to the
PET Claim and, as of the date hereof, the Court has not determined if the PET Ctaim is an altowed ctaim that witl
be entitted to a distribution.

The Administration's recovery of the PET units witt depend on the payment of the claim fited in the
Commonwealth's Titte lll case. As a resutt, as of June 30, 2021 , units received from the PET were fully reserved.

6) Notes, lnterest and Other Receivables, net:

As of June 30, 2021, notes, interest and other receivabtes had a balance of 51,066,188, net of altowance for
doubtful accounts of 53,248,609. Balance is composed oF the foltowing:

Receivobles from government entities:

D€scription Amount

w
v
v
w
;

v

v
w

s

v

t
v
v

v

v

v
w

Puerto Rico Land Authority
Ponce Ports Authority (formerty America's Port Authority)
Roosevelt Roads Loca[ Redevelopment Authority

15,000

609,610

515,500

1,140,110
(615,610 )

524 500

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Cdnponent Unft of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEI',IENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Refer to Note 16 for further description of the interagency agreement maintained with the Ponce PortsAuthority.

Rent and lond leases from governmental entities:

Description Amount

Municipatity of San Juan

Municipality of Ponce

i{unicipatity of Arecibo
Puerto Rico Metropotitan Bus Authority
Other governmental entities

Less: Auowance for doubtful accounts

Notes, interest dnd other receivobles:

Description

Notes and other receivabtes from third parties
lnterest receivable
Rent and land leases

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total notes, interest and other receivables, net

S 745,010

235,806

156,429

347 ,955
53,379

1,538,579
(1 ,507,676

30 903

Amount

s 162,363
10,408

463,337

125 323

1,636,108

1

1

1

51 785

I.r.13 188

7) Land and Properties:

The Administration's land and properties inventory is segregated into the fottoMng categories:

Leased under tonq-term contracts - Represent the investment in land and properties subject to lease contracts for
varying terms. Long-term lease agreements cover initial periods of five to thirty years with renewal option periods
of up to ten years. Real estate taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses are usuauy obligations of the lessees.
Contracts provide, in certain cases, for rent increases during renewal periods to be based on fixed percentages of
land market vatues at dates of renewal:
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(A Component Unit of the Cffimonweolth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATET,IENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Catafio Fuel Storoge and Pier Facilities - The Administration owns certain fue[ storage and pier facitities in Catano,
Puerto Rico. These facilities are fulty depreciated and amortized. The following summarizes the Administration's
investment in these facilities as of June 30, 2021:

DescriDtion
Usefut tife
(ln years) Amount

Structures and improvements
,\ achinery, equipment and tanks

10.15
25

s 3,603,s78
12 933

15,899,511

w

v

v
w

v
v

v

Less: Accumutated depreciation and amortization

Land

Other properties - As of June 30, 2021, other properties consist of the fottowing:

15 ir9 51'l

2,817,919

2 817 919

Description
Usefut tife
(ln years) Amount

Land - Frente Portuario

Project - Frente Portuario

lmprovements - Finca Multeada

Plaza lsabela

25

25

18

s 11,584,006

2,114,376

3,403,920

1,596,878

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization

18,699,180

(2,100,4441

16 s98 736

During the year ended June 30, 2021, depreciation and amortization expense of improvements amounted to
approximatety 5233,000.

Held-for-ille - Land and properties hetd for sale (principatty to other governmental entities) include land
purchased by the Administration on behatf of other governmentat entities. Land that is acquired on behatf of other
governmental entities generauy inctudes certain holding costs, which are subject to reimbursement by the
acquiring entity.

v

v

w

v

Funds received under this program from the acquiring governmental entities are ctassified as deposits on sate of
land and properties held-for-sale in the accompanying statement of net position, until title is transferred to the
buyer. As of June 30, 2021, properties hetd-for-sate deposits received for optioned land and properties amounted
to approximately 5169,00,000 and 532,000,000, respectively.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Cofnponent Unit of the Cunmonwealth of Puetto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Held-for-future use - This category inctudes undeveloped lots of tand, some of which are designated for possibte
sate to third parties, and properties under devetopment and/or held-for-sale to third parties. As of June 30, 2021 ,
properties hetd-for-future use consist of the fottowing:

DescriDtion Amount

Project - San Juan Waterfront
Project - Paramount Theater

Project - "Antigua Sede det Departamento de Salud"

8) Capital Assets, net:

During the year ended June 30, 2021, activity of capital assets is as fo[[ows:

s 2,880,500

10,652,414
l:lin iitili)

18,332,914

Additions Retirements
Ending

BalanceDescriDtion
Beginning
Balance

v
v
w
v
J
v
v
v

v

w
w

v
w

v

w
j

w

v
w

Y

Capital assets not being
depreciated, land

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buitdings and improvements

Furniture and equipment

Vehictes

Computer software

s 106,428 s s s 106,428

Less: Accumutated depreciation and amortization -

Buildings and improvements (11,353,727.1

Fumiture and equipment (1,232,0521

Vehicles (172,1241

Computer software

14,927,953

1,292,362

191,179

12,905

102 737

16,514,231 12,905

1674,4951
(36,380)

(90,7s0 ) (234)

(12,8$,648 (711,109

16,527,136

3

(12,0?,8,2171

(1 ,268,4321
(172,1241

(90,984)

13 559 75

14,927,953

1 ,305,767
191 ,179
102 737

073 807772 2043 1

9) Deferred Outflows of Resources:

As of June 30, ?:021, deferred outflows of resources is composed of pension related items for approximately
58,832,000 and other OPEB retated items for approximatety 577,000. Refer to additional detaits on Notes 12
and 13-
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADIvIINISTRATION
(A Conponent Unit of the Commonwedlth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIAENTS
Flscal year ended June 30, 2021

v
w
v
v
v

v
w
v
w

10) Due to Governmental Entltles:

Amounts due to governmental entities as of June 30, 2021, consisted of the foUowing:

Description

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Department of Natural Resources

"Centro de Recaudaci6n de lngresos rllunicipates (CRIM)"

Other entities

Amount

5 2,170,463
1,054,398

254,854
34,066

53 513,781

11) Deferred lnflows of Resources:

As ofJune 30, 2021, deferred inftows of resources consist of the change in proportion and net difference between
proiected and actual earnings in pension plan investments for approximatety 53,002,000. Refer to additional
detaits on Note 12.

12) Pension and Plan Description:

The Defined Benefit Pension P[an for Participants of the Emptoyees' Retirement System of the Government of the
Commonweatth of Puerto Rico (the Commonweatth) (the P[an) was created pursuant to Act No. 447 on May 15,
1951, as amended (Act No. ,147) to provide pension and other benefits to retired employees of the Cornmonwealth,
its public corporations, and municipalities ("ERS participants"). Prior to the effect of Act No. 106 of August 23, 2017
(Act No. 106-2017), the Ptan was administered by the Emptoyees' Retirement System of the Government of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the System). Effective Juty 1, 2017, att emptoyer contributions were etiminated
pursuant to Act No. 106-2017 and the Commonweatth implemented a "pay-as-you-go" (Payco) system for the
payment of pensions. Atso, pursuant to Act No. 106-2017, the Ptan was required to tiquidate its assets and
transfer the net proceeds to the Department of Treasury of the Commonweatth to pay pension benefits.

As a resutt of the imptementation of the Payco, the Ptan does not meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, to be considered a ptan that is administered through a trust or equivalent arrangement and, therefore,
is required to apply the guidance in GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Retated Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of
GASB Statements 67 and 68. Under the guidance of GASB Statement No. 73, the Commonwealth and its
component units are considered to be one employer, and are classified for financial reporting purposes as a singte-
emptoyer defined benefit pension ptan.

Act No. 106-2017 also terminated the previousty existing pension programs for ERS participants as of June 30, 2017
and created a new defined contribution ptan (the New Defined Contribution Ptan) for existing active members and
new emptoyees hired on or after Juty 1, 2017. This Ptan is simitar to a 401(k) and is managed by a private entity.
Future benefits witt not be paid by the P[an. Under the New Defined Contribution Plan, memb€rs of the prior
programs and new governmental employees hired on and after Juty 1, 2017 witt be enrolted in the New Defined
Contributions Program.

v
v

v
v
v
w

v

w
v

w

v
v
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PUERTO RICO LAND AD,VTINISTRATION
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIAENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Act lb. 106-2017, among other things, amended Act No. 447 with respect to Ptan's governance, funding and
benefits for active members of the actual program and new hired members. Under Act No. 106-2017, Ptan's
Board of Trustees was etiminated, and a new Retirement Board was created. The Retirement Board is
current[y responsibte for governing atl ofthe Commonwea[th'sthree major pension $/stems, inctuding the Ptan.
Def i ned Be ne f i t Progrom

The benefits provided to the Ptan participants are estabtished by Commonweatth law and may be amended only by
the Legistature with the Governofs approva[, or by court decision.

Certain Ptan provisions are different for the three groups of members who entered the Ptan prior to Juty 1, 2013 as
described below:

. lGmbers of Act No. 447 are generatty those members hired before Aprit 1, 1990 (contributory, defined
benefit program).

o ilembers of Act No. 1 of February 16, 1990 (Act No. 1)are generalty those members hired on or after
Aprit 1, 1990 and on or before December 31, 1999 (contributory, defined benefit program).

o Members of Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999 (Act No. 305 or System 2000) are generatty those members
hired on or after January I , 2000 and on or before June 30, 2013 (defined contribution program).

At[ regular emptoyees hired for the first time on or after Juty 1, 2013, and former emptoyees who
participated in the defined benefit program and the System 2000 program, and were rehired on or after
Juty 1, 2013, become members of the Contributory Hybrid Program as a condition to their employment. ln
addition, emptoyees who at June 30, 2013, were participants of previous programs became part of the
Contributory Hybrid Program on Juty 1, 2013. Atso, Act No. 3 of April 4, 2013 (Act No. 3 of 2013) froze att
retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 2013 under the defined benefit program and, thereafter, atl
future benefits accrued under the defined contribution formula used for the System 2000 program
participants.

Service Retirement Eligibility Requirements

o Eligibility for Act No. 447 - Members - Act No. 447 members who were eligible to retire as of June 30,
2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to Juty 't , 2013, Act t,lo. 447 members could retire
upon (1 ) attainment of age 55 with 25 years of credited service, (2) attainment of age 58 Mth 10 years of
credited service, and (3) any age with 30 years of credited service. ln addition, Act No. zl47 members
who attained 30 years of credited service by December 31, 201 3 are etigibleto retire at any time.

Act No. 447 members who were not etigibte to retire as of June 30, 2013 and did not attain 30 years of
credited service by December 31, 2013 are etigibte to retire with 10 years of credited service upon
attainment of the retirement etigibitity age shown in the table below:

Date of Birth

Attained Age
as of

June 20, 2013
Retirement

Etigibitity Age

61

60

59

Juty I, 1957 or tater
Juty 1, 1956 to June 30, 1957

Before Juty 1, 1956

55 or less

56

57 and up
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADA,IIN]STRATION
(A Cqnponent Unit of the Comm wealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIAENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

. Eligibility for Act l,lo. 1 filembers - Act No. 1 members who were eligible to r.etire as of June 30, 201 3
continue to be etigibte to retire at any time. Prior to July 1, 2013, Act No. 1 members could retire
upon (1 ) attainment of age 55 with 25 years of credited service, or (2) attainment of age 65 with 10
yearsof credited service.

Act No. 1 members who were not etigibte to retire as of June 30, 2013 are etigibte to retire upon
attainment of age 65 with 10 years of credited service.

. Eligibility for System zun Members - System 2000 members who were etigible to retire as of June 30,
2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time.

System 2000 members who were not etigibte to retire as of June 30, 2013 are etigible to retire upon
attainment of the retirement etigibitity age shown in the table below otherwise.

Date of Birth

Attained Age
as of

June 20, 2013

55 or less

56

57

58

59 and up

Retirement
Etigibitity Age

65

64

63

62

61

Juty 1, 1957 or tater
Juty 1, 1956 to June 30, '1957

Juty 1, 1955 to June 30, 1956

Juty l, 1954 to June 30, 1955

Before Juty 1, 1954

Service Retirement Annuity Benelits

An annuity payabte for the tifetime of the member equa[ to the annuitized vatue of the balance in the
Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account at the time of retirement, plus, for Act No. 447 and Act No.
1 members, the accrued benefit determined as of June 30, 2013, lf the batance in the Defined Contribution
Hybrid Contribution Account is S10,000 or tess, it shatt be paid as a lump sum instead of as an annuity. For
System 2000 participants this service retirement annuity benefit is not avaitabte.

o Accrued Benefit as of June 30, 2013 for Act No. 447 llembers - The accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013
shatl be determined based on the average compensation, as defined, for Act No. 447 membeB, the years
of credited service, and the attained age of the member atl as ofJune 30, 2013.

lf the Act No. 447 member had at least 30 years of credited service as of June 30, 2013, the accrued
benefit equals 65% of average compensation if the member was under age 55 as of June 30,2013, or 75%
of average compensation if the member was at least age 55 as of June 30, 2013. For participants
selecting to coordinate with social security (the Coordination P[an), the benefit is re-calculated at the
Social Security Retirement Age (SSRA), as defined, as 1.5% of average compensation up to 56,600
muttiptied by years of credited service, up to 30 years, ptus 65% (75% if the member was at least age 55
as of June 30, 2013) of average compensation in excess of 56,600.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Cdnponent Unit of the Commonwealth of Puetto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

lf the Act No. 447 member had less than 30 years of credited service as of June 30, 2013, and attained 30
years of credited service by December 31,2013, the accrued benefit equals 55% of average compensation
if the member was under age 55 as of June 30, 2013 or 60% of average compensation if the member was
at teast age 55 as of June 30, 2013. For participants selecting the Coordination Plan, the benefit is re-
catcutated at SSRA as 1.5% of average compensation up to 56,600 muttiptied by years of credited service,
up to 30 years, plus 55% (60% if member was at least age 55 as of June 30, 2013) of average
compensation in excess of 56,600, Member contributions received from Act No. 447 members eligible for
this transitory benefit during the period beginning Juty 1, 2013 and ending upon the attainment of 30
years of credited service are considered pre-Juty 1, 2013 contributions; the contributions to the Defined
Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account begin after the member attains 30 years of credited service.

lf the Act No. 447 member had less than 30 years of credited service as of December 31, 2013, the
accrued benefit equals 1.5% of average compensation muttiptied by years of credited service up to 20
years, plus 2% of average compensation muttiptied by years of credited service in excess of 20 years.
Maximum benefit is 75% of average compensation. Except for Commonweatth Potice and Commonweatth
Firefighters, the benefit is actuariauy reduced for each year payment commences prior to age 58. For
participants selecting the Coordination Ptan, the basic benefit is re-calculated at SSRA as 1% of average
compensation up to 56,500 muttiplied by years of credited service up to 20 years, ptus 1.5%ofaverage
compensation up to 56,600 muttiptied by years of credited service in excess of 20 years, ptus 1.5% of
average compensation in excess of s6,600 muttiptied by years of credited service up to 20 years, ptus
2.0% of average compensation in excess of 56,600 muttiptied by years of credited service in excess of 20
years. Except for Police and Firefighters, the benefit is actuarially reduced for each year payment
commences prior to age 58.

. Accrued Benefit as of June 30,201i for Act No. I llembers - The accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013
shatl be determined based on the average compensation for Act No. 1 members, the years of credited
service, and the attained age of the member atl as of June 30, 2013.

lf the Act No. 1 member is a police officer or firefighter with at least 30 years of credited seryice as of
June 30, 2013, the accrued benefit equats 65% of average compensation if the member was under age 55
as of June 30, 2013 ot 75% of average compensation if the member was at least age 55 as of June 30,
2013.

For a[[ other Act No, 1 members, the accrued benefit equats 1 .5% of average compensation muttiptied by
years of credited service. The benefit is actuarialty reduced for each year payment commences prior to
age 65.

Refer to the standalone financial statements of the Plan for further information on additionaI benefits.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resourcesond Deferred lnflowsol Resources
Reloted toPensions

As of June 30, 2021, the Administration reported a [iabitity of approximatety 544 mittion for its proportionate
share of the total pension tiabitity. The total pension liability was determined by an actuaria[ valuation as
of July 1, 2019, which was rolled fonrrard to June 30, 2020 (measurement date). The Administration's
proportion of the total pension tiabitity was based on the ratio of the Administration s actual benefit
payments for a[[ocation to the aggregate total of benefit payments for attocation paid by att participating
entities during the year ending on the measurement date. As of June 30, 2021, the Administration's
proportion was 0,15668%, which resutted in a decrease of 0.00616% from its proportion as of June 30, 2020
(measurement date).
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Cdnponent Un;t of the C$monweolth of Puetto Rico)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEAIIENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions ond llethods

The actuarial valuation used the foltowing actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurement
period:

Discount Rote

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 (measurement date) was2.Z1%. This represents the municipal bond
return rate as chosen by the Commonweatth. The source is the Bond Buyer General Obtigation (GO) 20-
Bond Municipat Bond lndex, which includes tax-exempt generat obtigation municipal bondswith an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher.

llortality

The mortality tables used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation were as foltows:

. Pre - re ti re me nt llor tali ty

For general emptoyees not covered under Act No. 127, PubG-2010 Employee Mortality Rates, adjusted
by 100% for males and 110% for females, projected to reftect Mortality lmprovement Scate MP-2020 on
a generationa[ basis. For members covered under Act No. 127, the Pubs-2010 Emptoyee Mortatity
Rates are assumed for males and fema[es, projected to reflect Mortality lmprovement Scate MP-2020
on a generational basis. As generationat tabtes, they reflect mortality improvements both before and
after the measurement date. 100% of deaths white in active service are assumed to be occupational
for members covered under Act No. 127.

. Post-retirement Heolthy filortality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for healthy retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of the
Ptan's experience from 2013 to 2018 and updated expectations regarding future mortality
improvement. The PubG-2010 heatthy retiree rates, adjusted by 100% for males and 110% for females,
projected using MP-2020 on a generational basis. Prior to retiree's death, beneficiary mortality is
assumed to be the same as the post-retirement healthy retiree mortatity. For periods after the
retiree's death, the PubG-2010(B) contingent survivor rates, adjusted by 1 10l[ for males and 120% for
females, projected using MP-2020 on a generationat basis. As generationaI tables, it reflects mortality
improvements both before and after the measurement date,

. Post-retirement Diebled ltortality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for disabled retirees based on a study of the Plan's experience
from 2013 to 2018 and updated expectations regarding future mortality improvement, The PubG-2010
disabted retiree rates, adjusted by 80% for males and 100% for femates. The base rates are projected
using Mortality lmprovement Scates MP-2020 on a generational basis. As a generational table, it reflects
mortality improvements both before and after the measurement date.
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ActuariaI cost method:

lnftation rate:

Satary increases:

Other assumptions as of June 30, 2020

The actuariat vatuation used the following actuaria[ methods and assumptions apptied to alI periods
in the measurement:

Entry age normal

Not applicabte

3,00% per year. No compensation increases are assumed
untit Juty 'l , 2021 as a result of Act No. 3-2017 , four-year
extension of Act No. 66-7014, and the current general
economy.

Sensitivity of the Administration's Proportionate Share of Totol Pension Liability to Chonges in the
Discount Rote

The fottowing tabte presents the Administration's proportionate share of the total pension tiabitity
calcutated using the current discount rate of 2.21%, as we[[ as what the Administration s proportionate share
of the total pension liabitity woutd be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point tower (1.21%) or one percentage point higher (3.21%) than the current rate:

DescriDtion

1%

Decrease

ot 1 .21%

Current
Discount Rate

ot 2.21%

1%

lncrease

ot 3.Z1%

Totat pension liabitity 432 43 ,T:n 996 38 763 tf:E

For the year ended June 30,2021, the Administration recognized pension expense of approximately
57',275,cf,o. Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources from pension activities by source reported
by the Administration in the statement of net position as of June 30,2021, are as fotlows:

Deferred
Outftows of
Resources

Deferred
lnflows of
ResourcesDescription

Differences between actua[ and expected experience

Changes of assumptions

Changes in proportion
Benefits paid and accrued subsequent to measurement

date

5 90,717 S

5,521,381

1,198,941

020 6M

831

990,0s2

754,965
1,257 ,1U

643 0023

The benefits paid and accrued subsequent to the measurement date and reported as deferred outflows of
resources, are related to the Pay-Go System and are due to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. These
benefits will be recognized as a reduction of the total pension liability after June 30,2021.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEITTEITS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions as of
June 30, 2021 will be recognized in pension expense in future years, as fottows:

Years ending June 30,
measurement date) Amountv

v
v
v
w

v
v

v
v

v

v

v

vt

7020
2021
20zz
2023

s 985,727
985,727
985,727
851 7

808,838

The previous amounts do not include the Administration's specific deferred outftows and deferred inftows of
resources retated to changes in proportion. These amounts should be recognized (amortized) by the
Administration over the average of the expected remaining service lives of att ptan members, which is 5
years for 2021.

13) Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan):

ln addition to the pension benefits described in Note 12, the Administration participates in the OPEB Ptan of the
Commonwealth for Retired Participants of the Employee's Retirement System. The OPEB is an unfunded defined
benefit other postemployment healthcare benefit plan administered on a pay-as-you-go basis, Accordingly, no
assets are accumulated in a quatifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB Statement No, 75 ).
Under the guidance of GASB Statement No. 75, the Commonwealth and its component units are considered to be
the one employer and are classified for financiat reporting purposes as a single-emptoyer defined benefit OPEB
plan.

The OPEB ptan covers a payment of up to 5100 per month to the etigibte medical insurance plan selected by each
member provided that the member retired prior to Juty 1 , 201 3 (Act No. 483, as amended by Act No. 3). The Ptan
is financed by the Commonwealth through legistative appropriations. There is no contribution requirement from
the plan members during active employment. The retirees contribute the amount of the healthcare insurance
premium not covered by the Commonweatth contribution. Plan members were eligible for benefits upon reaching
the appticabte pension benefits retirement age. Act No. 3 of 2013 eliminated this healthcare benefit to the Plan
members that retired after June 30, 2013.

OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense aN Deferred Outflows of Resources

As of June 30, 2021, the Administration reported a tiabitity of 51,039,119 for its proportionate share of the OPEB
tiabitity. The totat OPEB tiabitity as of June 30, 2021 was determined by an actuaria[ valuation as of Juty 1, 2019,
which was roUed forward to June 30, 2020 (measurement date).

The actuariaI valuation used the folloMng actuariaI assumptions applied to a[[ periods in the measurement period.

As of June 30, 2021 , the Administration's proportion was 0.1 1881%, which resulted in a decrease of 0.00329% from
its proportion as of June 30, 2020 (measurement date). The Administration recognized an OPEB expense for
approximatety 576,000, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

3
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIAENTS
Flscal year ended June 30, 2021

The deferred outftows of resources retated to the OPEB plan results from the benefits paid subs€quent to
measurement date amounting to approximatety 577,000 as of June 30, 2021 , and will be recognized as a reduction
of the totat OPEB tiabitity in the fiscal year ending June 30,2021. Because a[[ participants are inactive, there are
no deferred outflows or inflows of resources as changes in actuarial assumptions, economic or demographic gains
and losses, and changes in proportionate share are recognized immediatety during the measurement year.

Actuarial Assumptions ond liethods

The actuarial vatuation used the foltowing actuariat methods and assumptions applied to atl periods in the
measurement:

v
v
v
v
v
v

v
v

v
v
v
v
v
i
v

v

v
w
v

v
v

Valuation date:

Measurement date:

Actuarial cost method:

MedicaI trend rate:

July 1, ?.019

June 30, 2020

Entry age normal

Not appticabte

Discount rate - The discount rate was of 2.21%, This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Commonwealth. The source is the Bond Buyer General Obtigation (GO) 2o-Bond Municipal Bond lndex, which
includes tax-exempt generat obtigation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.
l,lortolity - The mortality tables used for valuation were as fo[[ows:

. Pre-retirement hlortolity

For general employees not covered under Act No. 127, PubG-2010 Emptoyee Mortality Rates, adjusted
by 100% for males and 110% for females, projected to reftect Mortatity lmprovement Scate MP-2020 on
a generational basis. For members covered under Act No. 127, the PubS-2010 Employee Mortatity
Rates are assumed for males and femates, projected to reflect lrlortality lmprovement Scate MP-2020
on a generationaI basis. As generational tables, they reflect mortality improvements both before and
after the measurement date. 100% of deaths while in active service are assumed to be occupational
for members covered under Act No. 127.

. Post-retirement Heoltlry ltortolity

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for heatthy retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of the
Plan's experience from 2013 to 2018 and updated expectations regarding future mortality
improvement. The PubG-2010 heatthy retiree rates, adjusted by 100% for mates and 110% forfemales,
projected using MP-2020 on a generational basis, Prior to retiree's death, beneficiary mortality is
assumed to be the same as the post-retirement healthy retiree mortatity. For periods after the
retiree's death, the PubG 2010(B) contingent survivor rates, adjusted by 110% for mates and 120% for
femates, projected using MP 2020 on a generational basis, As generational tables, it reflects mortatity
improvements both before and after the measurement date.

. Post- reti rement Disable ltortality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for heatthy retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of the
Plan's experience from 2013 to 2018 and updated expectations regarding future mortality
improvement. The PubG-2010 disabled retiree rates, adjusted by 80% for males and 100% for femates.
The base rates are projected using Mortatity lmprovement kates MP-2020 on a generationat basis. As a
generationaI tabte, it reflects mortality improvements both before and after the measurement date.
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v
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Sensitivity of the Administration's Proportionote Shore of Totol OPEB Llability to Changes in the Discount Rote

The fottowing presents the totat OPEB tiabitity of the Administration as of June 30, 2021 catcutated using the
discount rate of 2.21%, as we[[ as the Administration's totat OPEB tiabitity if it were catculated using the discount
rate of 1 - percentage point lower (1.21%) or 1 - percentage point higher (3.21%) than the current rate:

v
v
v
v
v

v
v

v

1% Decrease

ot 1 .21%

Current
Discount

Rate of 2.21%

1% lncrease

or 3.21%

Totat oPEB tiabitity 949 155

14) Terminatlon Benefits:

Voluntarv termination benefits

On Juty 2, 2010, the Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 70 to establish a program that provides
benefits for early retirement or economic incentives for votuntary employment termination to etigibte emptoyees,
as defined, inctuding employees of the Administration. Act No. 70 estabtished that early retirement benefits witt
be provided to eligibte emptoyees that have completed between 15 to 29 years of credited services in the
Retirement System and will consist of bi-weekly benefits ranging from 47.5% to 50% of each employee's satary, as
defined.

ln this early retirement benefit program, the Administration wilI make the employee and employer contributions
to the Retirement System and pay the corresponding pension until the employee compties with the requirements
of age and 30 years of credited service in the Retirement System.

Economic incentives are avaitable to etigibte employees who have tess than 15 years of credited service in the
Retirement System or who have at least 30 years of credited service in the Retirement System and the age for
retirement or have the age for retirement. Economic incentives wiu consist of a lump-sum payment ranging from
one month to six months' satary, based on emptoyment years. For etigibte employees that choose the economic
incentives and have at least 30 yea6 of credited service in the Retirement System and the age for retirement, or
have the age for retirement, the Administration witt make the employee and employer contributions to the
Retirement System for a five-year period. Additionatty, etigibte emptoyees that choose to participate in the early
retirement benefit program or that choose the economic incentive and have less than 15 years of credited service
in the Retirement System are etigibte to receive heatth ptan coverage for up to 12 months in a health ptan
setected by the Administration's management.

As ofJune 30, 2021, unpaid benefits on this program were discounted for employees under theArticte4b at 1.70%.
As of June 30,2021, the present vatue of future incentive payments reported as a liabitity amounted to
approximatety 5942,0@. During the fiscat year ended June 30, 2021 , the Administration recorded an expense for
approximatety 55,500, which is inctuded in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and
previousty considered in the present value of future incentive payments computation.

From the total aggregate tiabitity of the program as of June 30, 2021, the amount of approximatety 5140,000 shoutd
be funded during the next fiscal year. The non-current portion of the earty termination obtigation amounted
to 5802,000. Such amounts are disclosed respectively, as current and non-current liabilities in the accompanying
statement of net position.

t____u$,64. 039 1191
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Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

Voluntarv Dre-retirement Droeram

On December 8, 2015, Act No. 21 1-2015 was approved to create a Voluntary Pre-retirement Program. This Act
establishes that employees who have been working for the Commonweatth and enrotled in the Employees'
Retirement System (ERS) before Aprit 1, 1990 with at teast 20 years of service may be eligibte to participate in the
payment of emptoyer contributions on account of Social Security and i{edicare; and the payment of the
participant's heatthcare ptan during the fiBt two years of the program. This program also provides for the
employer to continue making both individual and employee contributions to the ERs. The Act No. 2011-2015
stipulate that the review and approval of Puerto Rico Office Management and Budget (PROMB) is required before
imptementation.

ln August 2016, nine (9) emptoyees signed an agreement to select the Votuntary Preretirement Program for a total
complete program and liquidation impact of approximatety 51,368,000. On August 1, 2017, PROMB approved the
program for the Administration.

As of June 30, 2021, unpaid benefits on this program were discounted for emptoyees at 1.15%. During the fiscat
year ended June 30, 2021, the Administration recognized expenses for approximatety 5542, retated to this
program. As of Jun e 30,?:021 , the present value of future incentive payments reported as a liability amounted to
approximatety 5394,000. From the total aggregate tiabitity of the program as of June 30, 2021, the amount of
approximately 5129,m0 should be funded during the next fiscal year. The non-current portion of the early
termination obtigation amounted to s265,000.

1 5) Non-current Llabllltles:

The summarized activity on non-current tiabitities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as fo[[ows:

Beginning

Ealance

\,
v
w
w
v
v
v
v

\)
v

v
5

v
w

v
v
v
v
w

D6cription

Accrued vacations

Uneamed rent

Guaranty rent deposits

Termination benefits

Totat pensifi tiability

other post-emptoyment benefits
tiabitity

Deposit5 on sal6 of tand and
prcpertles hetd-f or-sate

!37,2n S

't,055,110

738,4U

1,681,2U

&,46,5,505

1,016,149

31,967,7n

Due Within
One YearAdditions

154,852 s

817,892

32,998

6,U6

5,624,338

101,970

Deductions

(43,s25) s

(881,65'r)

(353,182)

(2,109,8/.71

(81,000)

Balance

448,606 s

991,351

771,42

'r,336,12E

43,980,996

128,427

991,351

269,181

2,152,4!7

1,039,119 73,275

w

w

v
v

31 967 7n

s_J!,264 _ 5______!J10p!_ l__Ee9&!i l___q!.EU!9_ l_____i,!llgl_

16) lnteragency A3reement:

On Juty 16, 2015, the Administration entered into a three (3) years agreement Mth the Ponce Ports Authority (the
Authority). under the agreement, the Administration assists in payments on behatf of the Authority for
professional services. The Authority then reimburses the amount to the Administration. Total receivabte for this
service as of June 30,2021, amounted to 5609,610, which is fulty reserved as an uncollectibte account.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEI,IENTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2021

17) Rentat lncome Commitments:

The Administration has entered into various long term rental agreements of certain land and properties avaitable.
The Catano Fue[ Storage and Pier facitities are leased to several companies engaged in the fuel distribution
industry. Lease agreements estabtish a minimum annuat lease payment or a "thruput" fee based on a U.5. galton
of bulk petroteum products at 600 F, passing through the facilities, whichever is greater. The leases' expiration
dates ftuctuate from fularch 20, 2023 through December 26, 2028, The teases contain renewal options that go from
one additiona[ ten-year period to extensions of 15 years.

The rental. agreements have a quarterty rental payment that ranges from approximately 5105,000 to 5681,000,
with an aggregate average monthly payment of approximatety 5620,000 as of June 30, 2021. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021, net rentat income under these lease agreements amounts to approximatety 58.6 mittion.

Minimum annual rentals under these contracts for the years subsequent to June 30,2021, are as fo[[ows:

Year endine June 30, Amount

7,793,320
7,793,320
5,565,896
5,565,896
5,283,357

10,760,024

5 42,761,813

The rental agreements related to Other Properties have a monthly orsemi-annual rentatpayment that ranges from
51 to 5137,500, with an aggregate average monthty payment of approximatety 51 ,600, as of June 30, 2021. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, rent revenues on such rental agreements amounted to approximately
54,000,000, which are reported as part of rental income.

l inimum annual rentals under these contracts for the years subsequent to June 30, 2021, are as fotlows:

Year ending June 30, Amount

2022
2023
2024
z0z5
2026

2027-2028

s

z0zz
?:073

2024
?:025

2026
7027-2031
?032-2036
2037-2041
2042-20/t6
2047 -2051

2052-2056
2057-2061
2062-2066
2067-2071
2072-2074

s 4,205,638
3,933,999
3,912,383
3,912,383
3,856,812
6,721 ,385
6,114,856
5,041,368
3,553,512
2,774,512
2, s37,500
2,237,500
1 ,547,500
1,375,000
1,375,000

s 53,099,346
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18) Other Commitments:

A. Guarantees - The Administration has entered into a purchase option agreement with the Roosevett Roads Local
Development Authority (Roosevelt Roads). Under the terms of this purchase agreement, the Administration
witl acquire the real estate properties located at Naval Station Roosevett Roads. The agreement established an

estimated price of 52,500,000 for such properties. As part of the purchase option, the Administration witt pay

a deposit of S600,0m.

The purchase option agreement expired on June 30, 2016 and the Authority wi[[ have to reimburse the deposit
amount to the Administration. The Authority presented a payment ptan for the reimbursement of the deposit
amount due to their current economic conditions and cash ftows difficutties which was approved on llay 4,
2017 by both parties. As of June 30, 2021, the balance due from the Authority amounted to approximatety
5523,000, which was recorded as part of the notes, interest and other receivables batance in the
accompanying statement of net position.

B. Claim to Federal i{anaqement Administration (FEl,lA) --During fiscal year 2019, l anagement re-evaluated the
extent of the hurricane-related damages to the Administration's properties hetd-for-sate and estimated its
losses. Accordingly, on December 2019, the Administration presented a claim in respect to hurricane damages

to the Federa[ Emergency l{anagement Administration (FE rlA). On January 11, 2021, the Administration
received notification of approval of funds for the total amount of approximatety 510.2 million. During the
year ended June 30,2021, the Administration did not have expenditures related to federal funds.

C. Claim for Earthouakes - On January 7, 2020, Puerto Rico experienced a 6.4 magnitude earthquake that shook
its southem coast, which was one of the most damaging quakes that the island has seen. Puerto Rico's
governor declared a state of emergency and requested direct federa[ assistance and emergency protective
measures. The Administration identified one property with structural damages retated to the events of
earthquakes, this property is referred as "Antiguo Casino de Ponce", which is located in the municipatity of
Ponce, and it is actuatly under a long-term contract with the same municipality to operate the casino. As of
June 30, 2021, the Administration is in the process to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (rrtou), in order to
FE vIA considers the municipatity as a subrecipient and obtain federal funds to repair damages of the property.

19) Contingencies:

Lecal Claims

The Administration is a party in [ega[ claims arising from land condemnations principatty on behatf of other
government entities. The management of the Administration, after consutting with legal counsets, isofthe opinion
that any tiabitities arising from claims of land condemnations on behatf of others, which for the most part
represent additional costs of land acquired and not yet sold, wi[[ be assumed by the governmental instrumentality
that witt uttimatety acquire the [and.

The Administration was notified in 1992 by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) that it was a Potential
Responsibte Party (PRP) under the provisions of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liabitity Act (CERCLA), The EPA also named other private and governmental sector PRPS. The public sector PRPS

are the Municipatity of Juncos and the Puerto Rico Housing Administration.

EPA attqed that the private PRPS deposited and/or arranged for disposal of hazardous substances at the Juncos
Landfitt. EPA atso alteged that the governmental PRPS were either aware of the land and/or operations, and
therefore, were responsibte for part of the tiabitity associated to the disposa[ of hazardous substances at the site.
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According to the case file, the governmenta[ PRPS must enter into an interagency agreement to allocate to each
governmenta[ PRP responsibility and duties, which currentty inctude monthty maintenance activities. lt was
preliminarity agreed that the governmental PRPs witl pay 52,000 monthty for one year to the Municipatity of
Juncos for the acquisition of equipment to be used in maintenance activities.

The Administration argues that its share of responsibility is 10% of said amount. lt should be noted, however, that
the maintenance activities woutd, in effect, for at least 25 yeaB. The governmental PRPS have been negotiating
each one's share of liability in order to contribute accordingty. As of the date of these financial statements, the
governmentat PRPs have not reached an agreement.

ln addition to the foregoing, the EPA was ctaiming 5645,758 from the governmental PRPS as alleged costs incurred
in the relocation of nearby residents of the condemned site. The governmental PRPS and the EPA reached an
agreement on June 22, 2010 to settte the EPA's claim for 5357,753, white the governmental PRPs reached jointty
that agreement with the EPA, they were supposed to reach an internal agreement to allocate each other's tiabitity
in order to pay its share of the agreed amount to the EPA. The governmental PRPS were not able to reach an
internal agreement on to allocate each one's liability.

The Administration decided it woutd pay one third (S122,584) of the amount owed to the EPA as its share in order
to bring the case to an end and to avoid potential future litigation costs and additiona[ efforts. Since the
agreement with the EPA was made jointty by the governmentat PRPs, in the event that there is an outstanding
balance not satisfied by any of the other governmental PRPS, the EPA may still come after the Administration for
coltection of such batance.

The Administration is atso a party in other ctaims arising in the ordinary course of business. l{anagement, based on
consuttation with its legal counse[, is of the opinion that the uttimate [iabitity, if any, resutting from these pending
proceedings and tegal actions in the aggregate will not have a material effect on the Administration's financial
statements. However, management is of the opinion that they wi[[ reach setttements in certain cases. A tiabitity
to cover claims and other contingencies amounting to S1,012,000 has been reftected as part of the accounts
payabte and accrued tiabitities batance in the accompanying statement of net position.

COVID-|9 Padenic

On l arch 11 , 2020, the Wortd Heatth Organization declared COVIo-l9 a gtobal pandemic. As a resutt of the health
threat and to contain the virus's spread across the island, Governor Viquez-Garced issued executive order
EO 2020-020 on March 12,2020, declaring a state of emergency in Puerto Rico to concentrate atl efforts and
implement necessary measures to safeguard the heatth, wettbeing and pubtic safety of the citizens of Puerto Rico.
The executive order authorizes the Commonweatth's Secretary of the Treasury and the Executive Director of the
Puerto Rico Office of lrlanagement and Budget to set up a special budget, from any avaitable funds, inctuding the
Emergency Fund, to cover a[[ necessary costs for the containment of the virus throughout the istand and the
sharing of information with the municipatities.

Subsequent executive ordeB, including the reopening of certain economic areas, curfew directives and other
protective measures have been issued in response to the COVID-19 spread. ln addition, economic stabitization
measures have been implemented by both the Government of Puerto Rico and the U.S. Government to provide
support and stimulus to fronttine workers, educators and students, hospitats, municipatities and sma[[ businesses,
including individuals and businesses in Puerto Rico, in response to the economic distress caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

As of today, the Administration's management had not identified any adverse effect from the COVID-19 pandemic
emergency in its operational cash flows.
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Fiscal ended June 30, 2021

20) Subsequent Events:

The Administration has evaluated subsequent events from the statement of net position date through October 26,
2022, the date at which the financial statements were avaitabte to be issued and determined that there are no
additionaI subsequent events to be disclosed.

This Spoce Lett Blonk tntentionolly
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SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE COLLECTIVE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDITED)

Fis€al years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, 2019 and 2018

v

t

w

Description 2021.

0.15668%

S ,13,980,996 S

2020'

o.16284%

4,466,505 s

zo19'

0.1s882%

38,894,797 5

2018'

o.154Tt%

43,652,509

Proportion of Totat Pension Liabitity

Proportionate Share of Totat Pension Liabitity

Covered - Emptoyee Payrott

Proportionate Share of Totat Pension Liabitity
as Percentage of Covered-Emptoyee Payrotl N/A N/A N/Av

v

c
v

v

v
c

w
v

a

v

' The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year

'Currentty there are no active participants in this ptan. Therefore, the coverage payrotl

disctosure is omitted.

Fiscat year 2019 was the first year that the Administration transitioned from GA58 No. 68 to
No. 73 resutting from the enactment of Act No. 106-2017. This schedute is presented

onty for the years for which the required supptementary information is avaitabte.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADiTINISTRATION
(A Cotnponent Unit of the Comrcnweolth of Puerto Rico)

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE COLLECTIVE TOTAL POSTEIIPLOYI ENT BENEFIT LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDTTED)

Flscal yeaB €nded June 30, 202'1, 2O2O,2019 and 2018

v
\,
v
w
c

v

Description

Proportion of Totat Other Post Employment
Benefit Liabitity

Proportionate Share of Totat Other Post Emptoyment
Benefit Liabitity

2021. 202v 2019. 2018-

o.t 188t% o.1221@6 0.11723% 0.11435%

s 1,039,119 5 1,016,149 s 987,251 5 1,052,621

N/A

v
v
i
w

c
a
v

w

a

v

Covered - Emptoyee Payrotl

Proportionate Share of Totat Other Post Emptoyment
Benefit Liabitity as Percentage of Covered-Emptoyee Payrott N/A N/A N/A

' The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal )/ear end,

'Currentty there are no active participants in this plan. Therefore, the coverage payrotl disctosure is omitted.

Fiscal year 2018 was the first year that the new requirements of GASB No. 75 wer eimptemented at the Administration.

This schedute is required to ittustrate 10 )/ears of infomation. However, until a 1o-year trend has been compteted,

information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is availabte.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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PUERTO RICO LAND ADMINISTRATION
(A Cqnponent Unit of the Commonweolth of Puefto Rico)

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORAIIATION (UNAUDITED)
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2O2O and 2019

1) Criteria in paragraph 4:

Act No. 106-2017 provided that the Plan woutd be funded on a Payco basis, and no assets woutd be accumulated
in a pension trust the discount rate doeli not reftect any expected return on plan assets, and is based sotely on
the Bond Buyer General Obtigation 20-Bond i,lunicipat Bond lndex rate of 2.21% as of June 30, 2020 (measurement
date).

As a result of the enactment of Act No, 106-2017, the Ptan does not meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Finoncial Reportlng for
Pensions, to be considered a plan that is administered through a trust or equivalent arrangement and, therefore,
is required to appty the guidance in GASB Statement No ,73, Accounting ond Finoncial Reporting for Pensions and
Reloted Assets Thot Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68 and Amendments to Certoin Provisions
of GASB Statements No. 67 ond No. 68.

2) Factors that siBnificantly affect trends ln the amounts reported:

Factors that significantly affect trends in the amounts reported were identified as fo[[ows:

Actuarial assumotions - There was a change in the actuarial assumptions or inputs in the determination of the
total pension tiabitity as resutt of the decrease in the discount rate from 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 to 2.21% as of
June 30, 2020 (measurement date).
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